DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS INC

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Form 10-Q August 16, 2018

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549
FORM 10-Q
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarter ended: June 30, 2018
OR
[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period from to
Commission File Number: 000-53741
DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC.

Nevada (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation)	20-5874633 (IRS Employer I.D. No.)
21218 Saint Andrews Blvd., Suite 323	
Boca Raton, Florida	
(Address of principal executive offices and zip Code)	
(561) 750-9777	
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)	
	filed all reports required to be filed by section 13 or 15(d) of the nonths, and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submit	omitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if ted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T onths (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated ons of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller act:
Large Accelerated Filer [] Accelerated Filer Non-Accelerated Filer [] Smaller Reporting Co Emerging Growth Company []	[] ompany [X]
	ark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition al accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes $[\]$ No [X]

As of August 14, 2018, there were 221,543,300 shares outstanding of the registrant's common stock.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC.

FORM 10-Q

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Item 1. Financial Statements	3
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	22
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	34
Item 4. Controls and Procedures	35
PART II – OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1. Legal Proceedings	35
Item 1A. Risk Factors	35
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	35
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities	36
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures	36
Item 5. Other Information	36
Item 6. Exhibits	37
Signatures	38

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS	June 30, 2018 (UNAUDITED)	December 31, 2017
CURRENT ASSETS:		
Cash	\$ 164,946	\$68,437
Accounts Receivable, net	869,334	615,639
Capitalized Job Costs	121,379	141,267
Inventory Other Company Assets	76,917	73,499
Other Current Assets	74,784	59,938
Total Current Assets	1,307,360	958,780
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net	12,140	64,250
Goodwill	794,830	794,830
Intangible Assets, net	579,399	682,682
Other Assets	1,635	6,670
Total Assets	\$ 2,695,364	\$2,507,212
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT		
CURRENT LIABILITIES:		
Convertible Promissory Notes, net of debt discounts of \$1,063,928 and \$230,721	\$ 3,000,777	\$2,952,250
Short Term Advances	146,014	146,015
Note Payable	1,799,148	1,971,208
Accounts Payable	480,705	361,619
Credit Card Payable	294,938	152,481
Accrued Expenses	3,920,570	3,607,100
Line of Credit	264,541	260,658
Stock Payable	25,000	25,000
Deferred Revenue	480,723	479,426

Due to Related Parties Note Payable - related party, current Derivative Liability Tatal Comment Liabilities	1,814 52,000 3,363,039		1,814 52,000 3,953,369
Total Current Liabilities	13,829,269		13,962,940
Note Payable-related party, net of current portion	752,000		778,000
Total Liabilities	14,581,269		14,740,940
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 17)			
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT:			
Preferred Stock (\$0.0001 Par Value; 5,000,000 Shares Authorized; Series A (51 shares designated 51 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2018 and 0 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2017)	-		-
Common Stock (\$0.0001 Par Value; 1,000,000,000 Shares Authorized; 194,190,392 and 13,873,971 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively)	19,419		1,387
Additional Paid-in Capital	19,336,187		17,158,926
Accumulated Deficit	(31,222,079)	(29,396,982)
Total DirectView Holdings, Inc. Stockholders' Deficit	(11,866,473)	(12,236,669)
Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiary	(19,432)	2,941
Total Stockholders' Deficit	(11,885,905)	(12,233,728)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit	\$ 2,695,364		\$2,507,212

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

	For the Three Months Ended June 30,		For the Six Mo June 30,	onths Ended	
	2018	2	2017	2018	2017
NET SALES: Sales of Product Services Total Net Sales	\$914,033 196,615 1,110,648	\$	51,025,865 205,626 1,231,491	\$1,881,090 430,688 2,311,778	\$1,084,382 275,026 1,359,408
COST OF SALES: Cost of Product Cost of Services Total Cost of Sales	505,058 145,158 650,216		469,797 111,620 581,417	921,404 387,090 1,308,494	499,844 125,415 625,259
GROSS PROFIT	460,432		650,074	1,003,284	734,149
OPERATING EXPENSES: Marketing and Public Relations Rent Depreciation Amortization Research and Development Compensation and Related Taxes Other Selling, General and Administrative Total Operating Expenses	580,288 34,112 9,224 51,642 - 330,382 335,884 1,341,532		1,036 22,742 42,186 65,824 2,000 210,521 194,761 539,070	779,270 68,226 59,364 103,283 - 649,908 577,377 2,237,428	3,474 23,387 42,186 65,824 5,700 321,351 323,122 785,044
(LOSS) INCOME FROM OPERATIONS	(881,100)	111,004	(1,234,144)	(50,895)
Gain on Conversion of Related Party Loan Gain (Loss) on Change in Fair Value of Derivative Liabilities	- 25,993,043		4,506 (2,496,964)	- 1,090,182	4,506 (27,608)
Initial Derivative Expense Gain on Extinguishment of Derivative Liability Amortization of Debt Discount Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs Other Income Interest Expense	(282,182 41,809 (455,305 (4,986 3,215 (168,464))	(133,804) - (78,181) (1,709) - (77,264)	(707,782) 41,809 (563,496) (6,951) 3,215 (470,303)	(237,085) - (231,731) (8,417) 129,216 (160,090)

Total Other Income (Expense)	25,127,130	(2,783,416)	(613,326	(531,209)
NET INCOME (LOSS)	24,246,030	(2,672,412)	(1,847,470)) (582,104)
Net Loss (Income) Attributable to Non-Controlling Interest	1,390	(14,131)	22,373	(31,524)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to DirectView Holdings, Inc.	\$24,247,420	\$(2,686,543)	\$(1,825,097)) \$(613,628)
NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE Basic Diluted	\$0.16 \$0.11) \$(0.13)) \$(0.13)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING: Basic Diluted	154,460,920 221,379,679	5,210,458 5,210,458	99,815,637 99,815,637	

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

	For the Six Months Ended June 30,	
	2018 2	2017
CARLELONG EDOM ODED ATTING A CITY VITTE		
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	¢(1,047,470), ¢	(502 104)
Net loss	\$(1,847,470) \$	(382,104)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:	162 649	100 010
Depreciation and amortization	162,648	108,010
Stock compensation expense (Coin) I ass an abanga in fair value of derivative liabilities	71,200	25,000 27,608
(Gain) Loss on change in fair value of derivative liabilities	(1,090,182) (41,809)	- -
(Gain) on extinguishment of derivative liabilities Initial derivative liability expense	* '	237,085
Amortization of debt discount	•	231,731
Amortization of deferred financing costs	6,951	3,416
Amortization of original issue discount	•	27,672
(Increase) Decrease in:	29,362	21,012
Accounts receivable	(253,695)	(184,267)
Other current assets	1,625	3,556
Other assets	5,035	(8,974)
Increase (Decrease) in:	3,033	(0,974)
Accounts payable	119,085	(91,573)
Accrued expenses	·	97,587
Deferred revenue	1,297	-
Deterred revenue	1,271	
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities	(749,676)	(157,074)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
Purchase of property and equipment	(7,255)	-
Acquisition of company	-	59,389
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities	(7,255)	59,389
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Repayments of note payable	(172,060)	(29,139)
Proceeds from convertible notes payable	1,314,000	210,000
Repayments of convertible notes payable	(262,500)	-
Proceeds from notes payable	-	59,000
Proceeds from line of credit	_	30,000
Repayments to line of credit	_	(2,396)
repayments to tile of credit		(=,5)0

Payments to related parties	(26,000) -
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities	853,440	267,465
Net Increase in Cash	96,509	169,780
Cash - Beginning of Period	68,437	58,449
Cash - End of Period	\$164,946	\$228,229
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:		
Cash paid during the period for: Interest Income Taxes	\$63,743 \$-	\$12,941 \$-
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Issuance of common stock (in connection with conversion of convertible promissory notes and accrued interest)	\$575,966	\$170,831
Initial recognition of derivative liability as debt discount	\$707,782	\$237,085
Reclassification of derivative liability to additional paid in capital (in connection with the conversion of convertible promissory notes and accrued interest)	\$1,547,327	\$279,209

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

DirectView Holdings, Inc., (the "Company"), was incorporated in the State of Delaware on October 2, 2006. On July 6, 2012 the Company changed its domicile from Delaware and incorporated in the State of Nevada.

The Company has the following six subsidiaries: DirectView Video Technologies Inc. ("DVVT"), DirectView Security Systems Inc. ("DVSS"), Ralston Communication Services Inc. ("RCI"), Meeting Technologies Inc ("MT"), Virtual Surveillance ("VS"), and Apex CCTV, LLC ("APEX").

The Company is a full-service provider of teleconferencing services to businesses and organizations. The Company's conferencing services enable its clients to cost-effectively conduct remote meetings by linking participants in geographically dispersed locations. The Company's focus is to provide high value-added conferencing services to organizations such as professional service firms, investment banks, high tech companies, law firms, investor relations firms, and other domestic and multinational companies. The Company is also a provider of the latest technologies in surveillance systems, digital video recording and services. The systems provide onsite and remote video and audio surveillance.

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, three wholly-owned subsidiaries, and a subsidiary with which the Company has a majority voting interest of approximately 58% (the other 42% is owned by non-controlling interests, including 12% which is owned by the Company's CEO) as of June 30, 2018. In the preparation of the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company, intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated and net earnings are reduced by the portion of the net earnings of subsidiaries applicable to non-controlling interests.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("US GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 8-03 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, the unaudited consolidated financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by US GAAP for complete financial statements. The unaudited consolidated financial statements and notes included herein should be read in conjunction with the annual consolidated financial statements and notes for the year ended December 31, 2017 included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on April 17, 2018.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring items) necessary to present fairly the Company's financial position as of June 30, 2018, the results of operations for the three and six months ending June 30, 2018, and the cash flows for the six months ending June 30, 2018 have been included. The results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2018 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the unaudited consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the dates of the statements of financial condition, and revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ significantly from those estimates. Significant estimates made by management include, but are not limited to, the allowance for doubtful accounts, deferred tax asset valuation allowance, valuation of stock-based compensation, the useful life of property and equipment, valuation of beneficial conversion features on convertible debt, valuation of intangible assets and the assumptions used to calculate fair value of derivative liabilities.

Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company follows ASC 810-10-65, "Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements." This statement clarifies that a non-controlling (minority) interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the entity that should be reported as equity in the unaudited consolidated financial statements. It also requires consolidated net income to include the amounts attributable to both the parent and non-controlling interest, with disclosure on the face of the consolidated income statement of the amounts attributed to the parent and to the non-controlling interest. In accordance with ASC 810-10-45-21, the losses attributable to the parent and the non-controlling interest in subsidiary may exceed their interests in the subsidiary's equity. The excess and any further losses attributable to the parent and the non-controlling interest shall be attributed to those interests even if that attribution results in a deficit non-controlling interest balance. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company reflected a non-controlling interest of (\$19,432) and \$2,941 in connection with our majority-owned subsidiary, DirectView Security Systems Inc. as reflected in the accompanying June 30, 2018 unaudited consolidated balance sheet and December 31, 2017 consolidated balance sheet, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company places its cash with a high credit quality financial institution. The Company's account at this institution is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") up to \$250,000. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 the Company had no bank balances exceeding the FDIC insurance limit. To reduce its risk associated with the failure of such financial institution, the Company evaluates at least annually the rating of the financial institution in which it holds deposits.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company follows FASB ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures" ("ASC 820"), for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. ASC 820 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting principles that require the use of fair value measurements establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Additionally, ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs are prioritized below:

Level	Observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
1:	Observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets of natimities
Level 2:	Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data
2:	Observable market-based inputs of unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data
Level	Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data, which require the use of the reporting entity's
3:	own assumptions

Cash and cash equivalents include money market securities that are considered to be highly liquid and easily tradable as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. These securities are valued using inputs observable in active markets for identical securities and are therefore classified as Level 1 within our fair value hierarchy. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 there were not any cash equivalents.

In addition, FASB ASC 825-10-25 Fair Value Option expands opportunities to use fair value measurements in financial reporting and permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The Company did not elect the fair value options for any of its qualifying financial instruments.

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, notes payable and due to related parties approximate their estimated fair market value based on the short-term maturity of these instruments. The carrying amount of the notes and convertible promissory notes approximates the estimated fair value for these financial instruments as management believes that such notes constitute substantially all of the Company's debt and the interest payable on the notes approximates the Company's incremental borrowing rate.

Accounts Receivable

The Company has a policy of reserving for questionable accounts based on its best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in its existing accounts receivable. The Company uses specific identification of accounts to reserve possible uncollectible receivables. The Company periodically reviews its accounts receivable to determine whether an allowance is necessary based on an analysis of past due accounts and other factors that may indicate that the realization of an account may be in doubt. Account balances deemed to be uncollectible are charged to the bad debt expense after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, management determined that an allowance was necessary which amounted to approximately \$160,000 for both dates. During the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 the Company recognized \$0 for both dates of write-offs related to uncollectible accounts receivable.

Capitalized Job Costs

The Company records capitalized jobs costs on the balance sheet and expenses the costs upon completion of related jobs based on when revenue is earned per ASC 606 "Revenue Recognition." As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company had \$121,379 and \$141,267, respectively included on their balance sheets under Capitalized Job Costs.

Advertising

Advertising is expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was \$779,270 and \$3,474, respectively.

Shipping costs

Shipping costs are included in cost of sales for VS and Apex and shipping costs are included in other selling, general and administrative expenses for DVVS and were deemed to be not material for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

<u>Inventory</u>

Inventory, consisting of finished goods related to our products is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value utilizing the first-in, first-out method. The Company acquires inventory for specific installation jobs. As a result, the Company generally orders inventory only as needed for installations. Due to the anticipation of customers' needs the Company purchased inventory items and had \$76,917 and \$73,499 in inventory as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost. The cost of repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred; major replacements and improvements are capitalized. When assets are retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are included in income in the year of disposition. The Company examines the possibility of decreases in the value of fixed assets when events or changes in circumstances reflect the fact that their recorded value may not be recoverable. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the lease.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-Lived Assets of the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable, pursuant to guidance established in ASC 360-10-35-15, "Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets". The Company recognizes an impairment loss when the sum of expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset. The amount of impairment is measured as the difference between the asset's estimated fair value and its book value. The Company did not consider it necessary to record any impairment charges during the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Intangible Assets

The Company amortizes the below identifiable intangible assets over their useful lives on a straight line basis.

Customer Relationships 10 years Brand 10 years Technology 3 years

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method as prescribed by ASC Topic 740: Income Taxes ("ASC 740"). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities, and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance, when in the Company's opinion it is likely that some portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Pursuant to ASC Topic 740-10: Income Taxes related to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, the evaluation of a tax position is a two-step process. The first step is to determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of any related appeals or litigation based on the technical merits of that position. The second step is to measure a tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold to determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial statements. A tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be recognized in the first subsequent period in which the threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not criteria should be de-recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which the threshold is no longer met. The accounting standard also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and transition. The adoption had no effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Stock Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is accounted for based on the requirements of the Share-Based Payment Topic of ASC 718 which requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements of the cost of employee and director services

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments over the period the employee or director is required to perform the services in exchange for the award (presumptively, the vesting period). The ASC also requires measurement of the cost of employee and director services received in exchange for an award based on the grant-date fair value of the award.

Pursuant to ASC Topic 505-50, for share-based payments to consultants and other third-parties, compensation expense is determined at the "measurement date." The expense is recognized over the service period of the award. Until the measurement date is reached, the total amount of compensation expense remains uncertain. The Company initially records compensation expense based on the fair value of the award at the reporting date. The Company recorded stock based compensation of \$71,200 and \$25,000 for employees during the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Loan Costs

The Company has early adopted ASU 2015-3 "Interest – Imputation of Interest" - Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. The loan costs are recorded as a debt discount and amortized to interest expense over the terms of the note payable.

Revenue recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09 (ASC 606) and related amendments, which superseded all prior revenue recognition methods and industry-specific guidance. The core principle of ASC 606 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of control for promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In applying the revenue principles, an entity is required to identify the contract(s) with a customer, identify the performance obligations, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations and recognize revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied (i.e., either over time or point in time). ASC 606 further requires that companies disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

ASC 606 provides companies an option of two transition methods, the full retrospective method, in which case the standard would be applied to each prior reporting period presented and the cumulative effect of applying the standard would be recognized at the earliest period shown, or the modified retrospective method, in which case the cumulative effect of applying the standard would be recognized at the date of initial application. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017.

Effective January 1, 2018 (beginning of fiscal year 2018), the Company adopted the requirements of ASC 606 using the modified retrospective method. The guidance was not applied to contracts that were complete at December 31, 2017, and the comparative information for the prior fiscal year has not been retrospectively adjusted.

The adoption of ASC 606 did not have any impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. The adoption of ASC 606 did not have a significant impact on the Company's revenue recognition policy as revenues on the substantial majority of the Company's contracts continue to be recognized over time.

In adopting ASC 606, the Company elected to use certain practical expedients permitted by the standard including electing to adopt the right-to-invoice practical expedient on certain time and material contracts where the Company recognizes revenues as it is contractually able to invoice the customer based on the control transferred to the customer.

The following policies reflect specific criteria for the various revenue streams of the Company:

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of conferencing services. The Company generally does not charge up-front fees and bills its customers based on usage. The Company has elected the practical expedient to recognized revenue "as-billed".

Revenue for video equipment sales and security surveillance equipment sales is recognized upon delivery and installation which the Company has determined is the point in time that control is transferred to the customer. Due to the nature of the Company's business it is not practicable to return products therefore the Company has determined that it is not necessary to estimate for sales returns and allowances. The Company's manufacturers provide the highest quality products available. If there is a defect in a product related to materials or workmanship the Company extends the manufacturer's warranty to its customers. To date this process has never occurred. Therefore no warranty liability is recorded.

Revenue from periodic maintenance agreements is generally recognized ratably over the respective maintenance periods provided no significant obligations remain and collectability of the related receivable is probable. Maintenance agreements are considered stand ready arrangements for which control is transferred to the customer ratably over time.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Company operates in two different geographic locations and both locations have two sources of revenue; sales of product and sales of service. Service sales mainly include installation of products related to security systems. The sales of products are generally contract based and short term in nature.

The following table illustrates our revenue by type related to the six months ended June 30, 2018:

	Texas	New York	Total
Sale of Products	\$1,819,949	\$61,141	\$1,881,090
Service	349,509	81,179	430,688
Total Revenue from Customers	\$2,169,458	\$142,320	\$2,311,778

Contract Balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

June 30, December 2018 31, 2017 Capitalized Job Costs \$121,379 \$141,267 Deferred Revenue \$480,723 \$479,426

Contract receivables are recognized when the receipt of consideration is unconditional. The decrease in contract assets was primarily due to timing of billings and revenue recognized on performance of services rendered.

The increase in contract liabilities was primarily due to revenue deferred on jobs where services are being rendered.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company recognized revenue of \$368,462 relating to amounts that were included as a contract liability at December 31, 2017.

As a practical expedient, the Company expenses the costs of sales commissions that are paid to its sales force associated with obtaining contracts less than one year in length in the period incurred.

Remaining Performance Obligations

The Company typically enters into contracts that are one year or less in length. As such, the remaining performance obligations at June 30, 2018 are equal to the deferred revenue disclosed above. The Company expects to recognize the full balance of the deferred revenue at June 30, 2018 within the next year.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes cost of products and cost of service. Product cost includes the cost of products and delivery costs. Cost of services includes labor and fuel expenses.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and trade accounts receivable. The Company places its cash with high credit quality financial institutions. Almost all of the Company's sales are credit sales which are primarily to customers whose ability to pay is dependent upon the industry economics prevailing in these areas. The Company also performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers to help further reduce credit risk.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, one customer accounted for 45% and 35%, respectively of revenues.

As of June 30, 2018, two customers accounted for 79% of total accounts receivable. The following is a list of percentage of accounts receivable owed by the two customers:

Customer 1 55% Customer 2 24% Total 79%

As of December 31, 2017, three customers accounted for 56% of total accounts receivable. The following is a list of percentage of accounts receivable owed by the three customers:

Customer 1 30% Customer 2 15% Customer 3 11% Total 56%

Research and Development

Research is planned search or critical investigation aimed at discovery of new knowledge with the hope that such knowledge will be useful in developing a new product or service (hereinafter "product") or a new process or technique (hereinafter "process") or in bringing about a significant improvement to an existing product or process. Development is the translation of research findings or other knowledge into a plan or design for a new product or process or for a significant improvement to an existing product or process whether intended for sale or use. It includes the conceptual formulation, design, and testing of product alternatives, construction of prototypes, and operation of pilot plants. It does not include routine or periodic alterations to existing products, production lines, manufacturing processes, and other on-going operations even though those alterations may represent improvements and it does not include market research or market testing activities. Per FASB ASC 730, the Company expenses research and development cost as incurred.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Company if the parties that, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, control, are controlled by, or are under common control with the Company. Related parties also include principal owners of the Company, its management, members of the immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management and other parties with which the Company may deal if one party controls or can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. The Company discloses all related party transactions. All transactions shall be recorded at fair value of the goods or services exchanged. Property purchased from a related party is recorded at the cost to the related party and any payment to or on behalf of the related party in excess of the cost is reflected as a distribution to related party.

Net Income per Common Share

Net income per common share is calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 260: Earnings Per Share ("ASC 260"). Basic income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted net earnings per share does not include dilutive common stock equivalents in the weighted average shares outstanding as they would be anti-dilutive. At June 30, 2018 the Company had 1,052,012,214 share equivalents issuable pursuant to embedded conversion features. At December 31, 2017 the Company had 442,601,456 share equivalents issuable pursuant to embedded conversion features.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date, which deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09 for all entities by one year. This update is effective for public business entities for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those reporting periods, Earlier application was permitted only as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. ASU 2014-09 was to become effective for us beginning January 2017; however, ASU 2015-14 deferred our effective date until January 2018, which is when we plan to adopt this standard. The ASU permits two methods of adoption: retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented (full retrospective method), or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at the date of initial application (the modified retrospective method). The ASU also requires expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. Additionally, qualitative and quantitative disclosures are required for customer contracts, significant judgments and changes in judgments, and assets recognized from the costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. We have completed the process of evaluating the effect of the adoption and determined that our contracts for which customers purchase both surveillance products and installation services from us may result in a change to our reported revenues as a result of the adoption. Based on our evaluation process and review of our contracts with customers, the timing and amount of revenue recognized based on ASU 2015-14 will be recognized when our performance obligations are satisfied for both product sales and installation services. This differs from previous guidance in which we recognized the sale of the products and installation services at the same time. We adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2018, using the modified retrospective approach, and will expand our consolidated financial statement disclosures in order to comply with the ASU. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements due to the short term nature of our contracts.

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-01, to clarify the definition of a business. Under this updated standard, an entity will be able to more consistently account for transactions when determining if such transactions represent acquisitions or disposals of assets or of a business. This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

The Company has reviewed all recently issued, but not yet adopted, accounting pronouncements and does not expect the future adoption of any such pronouncements to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements,

except as described below.

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU), Leases (Topic 842), intended to improve financial reporting about leasing transactions. The ASU affects all companies and other organizations that lease assets such as real estate, airplanes, and manufacturing equipment. Under the new guidance, a lessee will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than 12 months. Consistent with current Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the statement of assets, liabilities, and members' equity (deficit)—the new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on the statement of assets, liabilities, and members' equity (deficit). The ASU on leases will take effect for all public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018.

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-04, to simplify the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Under this updated standard, an entity should recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit's fair value, but the loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. An entity also should consider income tax effects from any tax-deductible goodwill on the carrying amount of the reporting unit when measuring the goodwill impairment loss, if any. This guidance is effective prospectively and is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted.

In June 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2018-07, to reduce cost and complexity and to improve financial reporting for share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods or services from nonemployees. Under this update standard, an entity should apply the requirements to nonemployee awards except for specific guidance on inputs to an option pricing model and the attribution of cost. Furthermore, this update standard applies to all share-based payment transactions in which a grantor acquires goods or services to be used or consumed in a grantor's own operations by issuing share-based payment awards. This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 with early adoption permitted.

NOTE 2 – GOING CONCERN CONSIDERATIONS

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements are prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. At June 30, 2018, the Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately \$11.2 million, a stockholders' deficit of approximately \$11.9 million and a working capital deficiency of approximately \$12.5 million. The net cash used in operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2018 totaled \$749,676. These matters raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of twelve months from the issue date of this report. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent upon increasing sales and obtaining additional capital and financing. Management intends to attempt to raise funds by way of a public or private offering. While the Company believes in the viability of its strategy to increase sales volume and in its ability to raise additional funds, there can be no assurances to that effect. The Company's limited financial resources have prevented the Company from aggressively advertising its products and services to achieve consumer recognition. The unaudited consolidated financial statements do not include adjustments to reflect the possible effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Estimated life	June 30,	December
Estimated fife	2018	31, 2017
1 year	\$20,488	\$13,333
1 year	5,866	5,767
1 year	11,042	11,042
1 year	150,000	150,000
1 year	22,667	22,667
2-3 years	2,000	2,000
	(199,923)	(140,559)
	\$12,140	\$64,250
	1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year	1 year \$20,488 1 year \$5,866 1 year \$11,042 1 year \$150,000 1 year \$22,667 2-3 years \$2,000 (199,923)

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, depreciation expense amounted to \$59,365 and \$42,186, respectively.

NOTE 4 – INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In connection with the Purchase Agreement of the Acquisition Companies (see Note 1) goodwill and other intangible assets were acquired. An independent valuation of the intangible assets was completed as of December 31, 2017. The intangible assets other than goodwill are being amortized on a straight line basis over their useful lives.

Intangible assets consist of the following:

	June 30, 2018	December 31, 2017	Useful Lives
Intangible assets:			
Goodwill	\$794,830	\$794,830	
Customer Relationships	95,000	95,000	10 years
Brand	204,000	204,000	10 years
Technology	530,000	530,000	3 years
Total	1,623,830	1,623,830	
Less: Accumulated amortization	(249,601)	(146,318)	
	\$1,374,229	\$1,477,512	

Amortization expense related to the intangible assets for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was \$103,283 and \$65,824, respectively.

NOTE 5 – LINE OF CREDIT

In connection with the Purchase Agreement of the Acquisition Companies (see Note 1) the Company assumed a \$350,000 revolving line of credit ("Line of Credit") that VS and Apex are jointly and severally liable for that expired on April 7, 2018. As of the filing date of this quarterly report the line of credit has not been repaid and is in default. The Line of Credit is guaranteed by VS, Apex and the Acquisition Companies' previous managing member and collateralized by all of the assets of VS and Apex. The line of credit has an interest rate of prime plus 1. The interest rate was 6.49% as of June 30, 2018. For the six month period ended June 30, 2018, the company had \$0 borrowings and made repayments of \$17,213. The balance outstanding on the line of credit was approximately \$265,000 and \$261,000 as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. As of June 30, 2018 the Company is out of compliance with the debt covenants related to the Line of Credit.

NOTE 6 - NOTE PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

In connection with the Purchase Agreement of the Acquisition Companies (see Note 1) the Company executed a non-interest bearing Note Payable – related party in the amount of \$830,000. The Note Payable principal amount will be reduced by the calculated cash payout of \$2,000 related to the terms in the Purchase Agreement and payments owed in accordance with the Employment Agreement with the Seller in the amount of \$150,000. The terms of the Employment Agreement include \$50,000 annually to be paid over a three year period commencing on Effective Date of the Purchase Agreement. Upon delivery by the Purchaser to the Seller of the final note payment, related to the Employment Agreement, the Note held by the Seller shall be forfeited and cancelled and no further force or effect, and the Purchaser shall have no further obligations on the Note. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, \$26,000 and \$0, respectively has been paid related to the Employment Agreement. No payments have been remitted pursuant to the Cash Payout as of June 30, 2018.

NOTE 7 – NOTES PAYABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company entered into demand notes with Regal Capital (formerly a related party) totaling \$116,792 bearing interest at 12% per annum. At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 the notes amounted to \$116,792 and \$116,792 respectively.

On March 6, 2017, the Company issued a 10% original issue discount (OID) promissory note with a principal balance of \$66,667 due August 6, 2017 with an interest rate of 10%. In connection with the original issue discount promissory note the Company recorded OID of \$6,667 and deferred financing of \$1,000 which are to be amortized over the term of the note. On October 3, 2017, the Company executed an agreement with a Note Holder to extend the maturity date of a promissory note an additional five months beyond the original maturity date of August 6, 2017. The cost of funding is 20% over a six month term prorated to a five month term. In addition, the Company agreed to issue the note holder 375,000 restricted shares of common stock upon payment of the note. It was also agreed that if the company and the note holder agreed the note may be repaid in the form of shares of common stock of the Company at 30% discount to market. As of December 31, 2017 the balance of the original issue discount promissory note amounted to \$66,667. On March 16, 2018, the note holder assigned the principal balance of the note along with the accrued interest to a third party and the Company issued a replacement convertible promissory note (see Note 10).

As of April 20, 2017, in connection with the Purchase Agreement of the Acquisition Companies (see Note 1) the Company assumed a note payable with a balance of \$1,923,896 that VS and Apex are jointly and severally liable for with a maturity date of April 2025 and an interest rate of 4.35%. The note payable is guaranteed by the Acquisition Companies' previous managing member and his spouse and collateralized by all of the assets of the Acquisition Companies. The note has certain debt covenants that the Company is out of compliance with. Per the Purchase Agreement the note was to be paid within 180 days of the Effective Date, the Company has not complied with the payment terms. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 the total balance owed on the note payable was \$1,692,441 and \$1,787,749, respectively.

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, notes payable amounted to \$1,799,148 and \$1,971,208, respectively.

Accrued interest on the notes payable amounted to approximately \$57,000 and \$92,000 as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively and is included in accrued expenses.

NOTE 8 – SHORT TERM ADVANCES

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 an unrelated party advanced funds to the Company used for operating expenses. The advances are payable in cash and are non interest bearing and due on demand. The balance of these short term advances was \$146,015 and \$146,015 as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

NOTE 9 – ACCRUED EXPENSES

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company had accrued expenses of \$3,920,570 and \$3,607,100, respectively. The following table displays the accrued expenses by category.

	June 30,	December
	2018	31, 2017
Operating Expenses	\$152,839	\$17,260
Employee Commissions	6,357	18,633
Interest	1,756,763	1,611,924
Salaries	1,927,739	1,770,027
Sales Tax Payable	55,872	54,532
Payroll Liabilities	21,000	134,724
	\$3,920,570	\$3,607,100

NOTE 10 – CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES

Convertible promissory notes consisted of the following:	June 30,	December
	2018	31, 2017
Secured convertible promissory notes	\$4,064,829	\$3,182,972

Debt discount liability	(991,964)	(216,069)
Debt discount original issue discount	(51,116)	(12,229)
Debt discount deferred financing Secured convertible promissory notes— net	(20,972) \$3,000,777	(2,424) \$2,952,250

On January 5, 2018, the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$8,947 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$13,098, OID of \$447, debt discount of \$8,053 and derivative expense of \$5,045. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$8,947 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$4,697.

On January 19, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$7,895 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$11,557, OID of \$395, debt discount of \$7,105 and derivative expense of \$4,452. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$7,895 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$3,832.

On January 24, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$52,632 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$84,591, OID of \$2,632, debt discount of \$47,368 and derivative expense of \$37,223. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On January 30, 2018, the Company issued a convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$58,000 with a one year maturity date. This note holder has the right to convert the principal balance of the debenture beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this note and ending on the later of the maturity date and the date of the default amount. The convertible promissory note has terms to convert at a 37% discount of the lowest trading price during the 10 days prior to conversion. The Company recorded \$3,000 in deferred financing associated with this note. The deferred financing is being amortized on a straight line basis over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$58,000 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of deferred financing at June 30, 2018 was \$56,542.

On February 9, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$15,789 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$23,434, OID of \$789, debt discount of \$8,434 and derivative expense of \$15,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$15,789 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$10,025.

On February 15, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$12,632 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$18,747, OID of \$632, debt discount of \$6,747 and derivative expense of \$12,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$12,632 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$8,020.

On February 26, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$26,316 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$39,056, OID of \$1,316, debt discount of \$14,056 and derivative expense of \$25,000.

The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$26,316 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$16,068.

On March 6, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$31,579 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$50,755, OID of \$1,579, debt discount of \$28,421 and derivative expense of \$22,334. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On March 9, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$31,579 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$46,868, OID of \$1,579, debt discount of \$16,868 and derivative expense of \$30,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$31,579 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$18,512.

On March 16, 2018, the Company issued a replacement convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$124,689 with a one year maturity date that was recorded under note payable on the company's balance sheet as of December 31, 2017 in the amount of \$66,667 and accrued interest of \$8,811. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$200,404 and derivative expense of \$202,404. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the note holder converted \$84,150 of the principal balance of the convertible promissory note into 29,493,911 common shares at contractual rates of \$.00176, \$.002475, and \$.0055 per share. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On March 21, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$52,632 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$74,001, OID of \$2,632, debt discount of \$24,000 and derivative expense of \$50,001. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$52,632 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$33,453.

On March 23, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$26,316 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$42,848, OID of \$1,316, debt discount of \$17,848 and derivative expense of \$25,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On March 31, 2018, the Company issued a replacement convertible promissory note assigning two outstanding convertible promissory notes to a third party note holder with a principal balance of \$74,754 and a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this

conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$121,717, OID of \$439, debt discount of \$54,858 and derivative expense of \$74,754. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On April 5, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$105,263 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$145,905, OID of \$5,263, debt discount of \$94,737 and derivative expense of \$51,168. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On April 5, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$55,368 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$64,472, OID of \$2,368, debt discount of \$50,632 and derivative expense of \$13,841. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$55,368 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$20,035.

On April 18, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$113,250 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$131,876, OID of \$5,250, debt discount of \$108,000 and derivative expense of \$23,876. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$113,250 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$31,458.

On April 27, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$18,947 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$23,695, OID of \$947, debt discount of \$17,053 and derivative expense of \$6,642. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$18,947 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$3,947.

On May 2, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$129,000 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$150,229, OID of \$6,000, debt discount of \$123,000 and derivative expense of \$27,229. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$129,000 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$28,667.

On May 16, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$113,250 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$131,904, OID of \$5,250, debt discount of \$108,000 and derivative expense of \$23,904. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$113,250 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$18,875.

On May 30, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$118,500 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a

derivative liability of \$138,006, OID of \$5,500, debt discount of \$113,000 and derivative expense of \$25,006. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$118,500 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$13,167.

On June 13, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$122,273 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$142,418, OID of \$5,750, debt discount of \$116,523 and derivative expense of \$25,894. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$122,273 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$6,793.

On June 15, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$279,102 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$325,078, OID of \$13,125, debt discount of \$265,477 and derivative expense of \$59,601. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$279,102 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$15,978.

On June 27, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$118,500 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$138,022, OID of \$5,500, debt discount of \$113,000 and derivative expense of \$25,022. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$118,500 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$0.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018 and the year ended December 31, 2017 amortization of debt discount amounted to \$571,391 and \$403,245, respectively.

NOTE 11 - DERIVATIVE LIABILITY

The Company evaluates its convertible instruments, options, warrants or other contracts to determine if those contracts or embedded components of those contracts qualify as derivatives to be separately accounted for under ASC Topic 815, "Derivatives and Hedging." The result of this accounting treatment is that the fair value of the derivative is marked-to-market each balance sheet date and recorded as a liability. In the event that the fair value is recorded as a liability, the change in fair value is recorded in the statement of operation as other income (expense). Upon conversion or exercise of a derivative instruments, the instrument is marked to fair value at the conversion date then that fair value is reclassified to equity. Equity instruments that are initially classified as equity that become subject to reclassification under ASC Topic 815 are reclassified to liabilities at the fair value of the instrument on the reclassification date.

The following table presents a reconciliation of the derivative liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) from December 31, 2016 to June 30, 2018:

	Conversion
	feature
	derivative
	liability
Balance at December 31, 2016	\$4,956,637
Initial fair value of derivative liability recorded as debt discount	336,094
Initial fair value of derivative liability charged to other expense	537,541
Reclass of derivative liability to additional paid in capital due to conversions	(390,996)
Gain on change in fair value included in earnings	(1,485,907)
Balance at December 31, 2017	\$3,953,369
Initial fair value of derivative liability recorded as debt discount	1,339,398

Initial fair value of derivative liability charged to other expense	707,782
Reclass of derivative liability to additional paid in capital due to conversions	(1,547,328)
Gain on change in fair value included in earnings	(1,090,182)
Balance at June 30, 2018	\$3,363,039

Total derivative liability at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 amounted to \$3,363,039 and \$3,953,369, respectively. The change in fair value included in earnings of \$1,090,182 is due to substantially decreased conversion prices due to the effect of "Ratchet" provisions incorporated in convertible notes payable (see Note 10) coupled with a decrease in the risk-free interest rate.

The Company used the following assumptions for determining the fair value of the convertible instruments granted under the Black-Scholes option pricing model:

From January 1, 2018 to June 30, 2018

Expected volatility 194% - 293 % Expected term 3 – 12 months Risk-free interest rate 1.28%-2.25 % Expected dividend yield 0 %

NOTE 12 - STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

The Series A Preferred Stock has no dividend rights, no liquidation rights and no redemption rights, and was created primarily to be able to obtain a quorum and conduct business at shareholder meetings. All shares of the Series A Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the Company's common stock and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created, (ii) *pari passu* with any class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created and specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series A Preferred Stock and (iii) junior to any class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created specifically ranking, by its terms, senior to the Series A Preferred Stock, in each case as to distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary.

On February 12, 2018, the Company issued 5,000,000 shares of common stock at the fair market value rate of \$0.009 totaling \$45,000 to the Company's CEO for services rendered. The Company also issued 3,000,000 shares of common stock at the fair market value rate of \$0.009 totaling \$27,000 to an employee for services rendered.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company issued 172,316,475 shares of common stock at contractual rates ranging from \$.00176 to \$.005915 for the conversion of \$494,266 in principal and \$95,762 in accrued interest of convertible notes payable (See Note 10).

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to Related Parties

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company advanced funds for operating expenses in 2016. As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 the Company has a balance of \$1,814 in Due to Related Parties included on the balance sheet. These advances are short-term in nature and non-interest bearing.

Note Payable – related party

The following related party transactions have been presented on the balance sheet in Note Payable – related party. In connection with the Purchase Agreement of the Acquisition Companies (see Note 1) the Company executed a non-interest bearing note payable in the amount of \$830,000 due to the former CEO of the Acquisition Companies. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the Company paid \$26,000 related to this note payable. At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 the balance of the note payable – related party amounted to \$804,000 and \$830,000, respectively.

NOTE 14 – BARTER REVENUE

The Company provides security systems and associated installation labor in exchange for business services. The Company recognizes revenue from these barter transactions when security systems are installed and recognizes deferred barter costs as other current assets until the barter transaction is completed and then recognizes the appropriate expense. The barter revenue is valued at the fair market value which is the selling price we sell to other third parties. The barter revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 totaled \$0 and \$27,721, respectively.

NOTE 15 - ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES

At June 30, 2018 the Company recorded a liability related to current and certain unpaid payroll taxes of approximately \$21,000, of which approximately \$6,000 relates to current payroll taxes and \$15,000 relates to certain unpaid payroll taxes and includes interest and penalties. Although the Company has not received any notices from the IRS related to the unpaid payroll taxes, the Company confirmed the outstanding balances with the IRS. At December 31, 2017 the Company had \$135,000 recorded as a liability related to this matter. Such amounts are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 16 - SEGMENT REPORTING

Although the Company has a number of operating divisions, separate segment data has not been presented as they meet the criteria for aggregation as permitted by ASC Topic 280, "Segment Reporting" (formerly Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 131, "Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information").

Our chief operating decision-maker is considered to be our Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for purposes of making operating decisions and assessing financial performance. The financial information reviewed by the CEO is identical to the information presented in the accompanying unaudited consolidated statements of operations. Therefore, the Company has determined that it operates in a single operating segment, specifically, security systems and related services. For the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 all material assets and revenues of the Company were in the United States.

NOTE 17 - COMMITMENTS

Leases:

In connection with the Purchase Agreement of the Acquisition Companies (see Note 1) the Company assumed a lease for office space with a four year term beginning on April 1, 2015 and ending on March 31, 2019. The Company has the option to renew the lease for an additional six years after the expiration date. The monthly rent expense is \$11,371.

Payments Due by Period Total

Less	1-3	4-5	5
than 1	Years	Years	Years
year			+

Contractual Obligations:

Operating Leases \$102,339 102,339 - - - Total Contractual Obligations: \$102,339 102,339 - - -

Rent expense for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was \$68,226 and \$23,387, respectively.

NOTE 18 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 27, 2018, the Company entered into a settlement with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. ("Chase") regarding payment of the outstanding balance under that certain Promissory Note and U.S. Small Business Administration Note dated April 15, 2015 (the "Notes") in the aggregate principal amount of approximately \$1,900,000 including interest (the "Loan Amount") between Video Surveillance LLC, Apex CCTV, and Chase. According to the terms of the settlement, the Company and Chase have agreed to a full and final settlement of the Loan Amount and the related transactions thereunder in exchange for payment by the Company in the amount of \$475,000 on August 3, 2018 (the "Initial Payment") and three additional payments of \$475,000 each month thereafter (the "Additional Payment"). As of the date hereof, the Company has timely made the Initial Payment to Chase and intends to deliver each Additional Payment in full satisfaction of the Loan Amount. In the event the Company fails to timely deliver an Additional Payment, Chase may call an event of default under the terms of the Notes and accelerate the Loan Amount, amongst other remedies available to Chase.

Subsequent to June 30, 2018, the Company issued 5% OID convertible promissory notes with principal balances totaling approximately \$635,000 with maturity dates between nine-months and one year. These convertible debentures convert at either a fixed price or 40% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversions. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory notes the Company will account for these conversion features as derivative liabilities.

Subsequent to June 30, 2018, the Company issued 27,352,908 shares of common stock upon conversion of \$78,836 of convertible promissory notes and \$418 of accrued interest. These notes were converted at contractual rates ranging from \$.002475 to \$.0033.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q and other reports filed by DirectView Holdings, Inc. (the "Company") from time to time with the SEC (collectively, the "Filings") contain or may contain forward-looking statements and information that are based upon beliefs of, and information currently available to, the Company's management as well as estimates and assumptions made by Company's management. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are only predictions and speak only as of the date hereof. When used in the Filings, the words "anticipate," "estimate," "expect," "future," "intend," "plan," or the negative of these terms and similar expressions as they relate to the Company or the Company's management identify forward-looking statements. Such statements reflect the current view of the Company with respect to future events and are subject to risks, uncertainties, assumptions, and other factors, including the risks relating to the Company's business, industry, and the Company's operations and results of operations. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should the underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may differ significantly from those anticipated, believed, estimated, expected, intended, or planned.

Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, the Company cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements. Except as required by applicable law, including the securities laws of the United States, the Company does not intend to update any of the forward-looking statements to conform these statements to actual results.

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP"). These accounting principles require us to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions. We believe that the estimates, judgments and assumptions upon which we rely are reasonable based upon information available to us at the time that these estimates, judgments and assumptions are made. These estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. Our financial statements would be affected to the extent there are material differences between these estimates and actual results. In many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP and does not require management's judgment in its application. There are also areas in which management's judgment in selecting any available alternative would not produce a materially different result. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report.

Overview

Our Company was formed in October 2006 and immediately thereafter we acquired Ralston Communication Services and Meeting Technologies from DirectView, Inc., a Nevada corporation of which Mr. and Mrs. Ralston were officers and directors immediately prior to such acquisition, in exchange for the assumption by us of these subsidiaries working capital deficiencies and any and all trade credit and other liabilities. Both of these entities had historically

provided the video conferencing services we continue to provide. Thereafter, in February 2007, we formed DirectView Security Systems, Inc. ("DirectView Security") and in July 2007 we formed DirectView Video. DirectView Security began offering services and products immediately from inception.

Effective April 20, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") with Video Surveillance Limited Liability Company, a Texas limited liability company with an assumed name of Virtual Surveillance ("VS"), Apex CCTV Limited Liability Company, a Texas limited liability company formerly known as Vaultronics ("APEX" and together with VS, the "Acquisition Companies"), and Mark D. Harris the sole member and equity owner of each of the Acquisition Companies (the "Seller"). The Company entered into the SPA to expand business operations and increase our presence. We anticipate serving more clients and increasing revenue with the addition of VS and APEX.

Our operations are conducted within New York and Texas.

We operate our security division through DirectView Security, Virtual Surveillance, and ApexCCTV, LLC where we provide a wide array of video and audio hardware and software options to create custom security and surveillance solutions for large and small businesses as well as residential customers. The Company currently services customers in transportation, hotel and hospitality, education, cannabis, food services, and real estate industries.

We provide our customers with the latest technologies in surveillance systems, digital video recording and services. The systems provide onsite and remote video and audio surveillance. We generate revenue through the sale and installation of surveillance systems and the sale of maintenance agreements.

We have also developed custom software programs and applications to work with the products we offer to customers to enhance their convenience and capability. We have developed a mobile application which we call the "DirectView Security App" to enable full remote management of deployed surveillance devices including positioning cameras, setting recording parameters, and replay of selected video. The DirectView Security App provides full encryption and is compatible with all Apple and Android based mobile devices. We are also in late stage development of a proprietary software platform targeted for educational institutions/daycare, aviation, and religious organizations. The platform will enable tiered database controlled access to multiple encrypted live streaming videos with audio with full scalability. The software will allow these businesses and organizations to provide parents, patrons or customers access to see and view a particular classroom, attend a religious service, or watch any activity permitted by the licensor of the software through any internet connected mobile device or computer.

We target businesses of various sizes ranging from residential to large scale businesses.

Beginning in 2014, we focused a significant amount of our business development and marketing efforts towards the legalized cannabis industry. We see this market as a strong growth area for the Company due to our belief that the political landscape will continue to move towards the legalization of marijuana for medical and recreational use across the country.

The medical use of cannabis is legal (with a doctor's recommendation) in 31 states, the District of Columbia, and the territories of Guam and Puerto Rico. The recreational use of cannabis is legal in 9 states (Alaska, California, Colorado, Maine, Massachusetts, Nevada, Oregon, Vermont, and Washington) plus the District of Columbia, and decriminalized in another 13 states plus the U.S. Virgin Islands. Many large security service providers have publicly avoided servicing businesses engaged in the sale or growing of marijuana which we believe lowers the competitive landscape.

In addition to conducting direct sales activities to businesses operating in this market, we also focus on partnerships with other service providers in the industry that are generally involved in the design and construction of facilities to grow and dispense marijuana. We have a preferred provider agreement with Legacy Construction Company of Colorado, LLC ("Legacy"). Under the terms of the preferred provider agreement, Legacy directs their retail and marijuana facility construction clients to DirectView for video surveillance and security needs. Legacy has over fifteen years of experience and expertise in commercial general contracting with specific experience in the retail and medical marijuana industry. Legacy holds a Class A general contractors license in six states including Colorado, Wyoming, Nevada, New Mexico, Utah, and Arizona. We also have a strategic partnership agreement with Cannamor, LLC ("Cannamor"), a privately held Colorado based consulting company focusing on legal cannabis growing and dispensing projects, where we are engaged as its exclusive security solutions provider. Under the terms of the agreement, Cannamor exclusively endorses and recommends DirectView as its vendor of choice for the planning and installation of video surveillance, video monitoring, video recording products and related services to its prospective clients. Both of these arrangements have led to sales and a number of large potential project leads within our sales pipeline. We continue to see this industry as a growing part of our security and surveillance business for the foreseeable future.

In an effort to further expand our market opportunities, in April 2015, we began preparations to develop a unique body-worn-camera solution to target law enforcement, business security and homeland security markets. We expect the solution to comprise of a line of body-worn-cameras integrated with a suite of communications capabilities including high capacity streaming video, *Bluetooth*®, GPS, push to talk, WIFI/4G LTE, and imbedded biometric access. We are also working to integrate the video feeds with backend storage solutions for video/audio storage including playback and editing of stored evidence. We have received body-worn-camera prototypes that have been manufactured to our design specifications by a large third-party manufacturer and we are currently beta testing those prototypes. We intend to have that manufacturer produce a finished product upon successful completion of product testing.

In order to enhance the communications capability of the solution as well as our marketing capabilities, we entered into an agreement with xG Technology, Inc. ("xG"), a developer of wireless communications and spectrum sharing technologies, to integrate our body-worn-camera device and related hardware with xG's xMax private mobile broadband technology. The planned integration will consolidate the private, secure, high-performance communications capabilities of xMax with the features and functionality of our body-worn cameras.

We intend to offer our body-worn-cameras and the related suite of communications and storage solutions to our target customers through both direct sales and strategic partnerships with companies that sell complimentary products in the areas of law enforcement, homeland security and private security. In addition to our integration agreement with xG, we entered into a co-marketing agreement with PositiveID Corporation ("PSID"), a developer of diagnostic testing systems for use by first responders, to jointly market both companies' products to homeland security and first responder markets. We believe that co-marketing and product integration agreements such as these will expand the breadth of our product offerings and enable us to leverage the marketing capabilities of our partners to increase sales opportunities upon product launch.

Our video conferencing products and services enable our clients to cost-effectively conduct remote meetings by linking participants in geographically dispersed locations. Our primary focus is to provide high value-added conferencing products and services to organizations such as commercial, government, medical and educational sectors. We generate revenue through the sale of conferencing services based upon usage, the sale and installation of video equipment and the sale of maintenance agreements.

Our Outlook

Our net sales are currently not sufficient to fund our operating expenses. We have relied upon funds from the issuance of convertible promissory notes, the sale of common stock and advances from our executive officers to provide working capital to the Company. These funds, however, are not sufficient to pay all of our expenses nor to provide the additional capital we believe is necessary to permit us to properly market our company in an effort to increase our sales. We are always looking for opportunities with new dealers to expand our IP based surveillance products offerings and plan to evaluate the market for our products throughout 2018 to determine whether we should hire additional employees in our sales force. We seek to leverage our current customer base which includes major international hotel chains, well known real estate development companies, and respected educational facilities, to build our reputation as a trusted security provider and generate customer referrals, Beginning in 2014 we also began targeting our marketing efforts toward the cannabis industry. We see the specific security needs of this industry, representing a significant opportunity for sales growth. Each state has specific requirements for security which includes extensive video surveillance and perimeter security. Additionally, some larger security companies have been hesitant to enter this market up to this point we believe this will help reduce competitive pressures. While we believe our strategy for growth will result in an increase in demand for our products and service and generate revenues, no assurance can be provided that we will successfully implement our strategy. We are subject to significant business risks and may need to raise additional capital in order to realize and effectuate the above strategy. As a result of the addition of VS and APEX we are planning a roll up strategy to acquire more entities that will compliment ours and enhance our revenue and growth.

Results of Operations

Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 Compared to Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2017

Net Sales

Overall, our net sales for the three months ended June 30, 2018 declined approximately 10% while our net sales for the six months ended June 30, 2018 increased approximately 70% from the comparable periods in 2017. The following tables provide comparative data regarding the sources of our net sales in each of these periods and the change from 2017 to 2018:

	Three Mont	hs		Three Mont	hs			
	Ended			Ended				
	June 30, 20	18		June 30, 20	17			
	¢	% of		¢	% of		Varianc	
	\$	Total		Ф	Total		v arranc	Е
Sale of product	914,033	82	%	1,025,865	83	%	(11	%)
Service	196,615	18	%	205,626	17	%	(4	%)
Total	1,110,648	100	%	1,231,491	100	%	(10	%)

	Six Months	Ended	l	Six Months	Ended	l		
	June 30, 20	18		June 30, 20	17			
	¢	% of Total		¢	% of		Voniona	
	\$	Total		Ф	Total		Variance	
Sale of product	1,881,090	81	%	1,084,382	80	%	74	%
Service	430,688	19	%	275,026	20	%	57	%
Total	2,311,778	100	%	1,359,408	100	%	70	%

Sales of product for the three months ended June 30, 2018 decreased approximately 11% as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2017. The decrease is attributed to softer product sales across all segments. Service revenue decreased by approximately 4% for the three months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2017. The decrease is attributed to the timing of when product installations are completed.

Sales of product for the six months ended June 30, 2018 increased approximately 74% as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017. The increase is attributed to the acquisition of VS and Apex. Service revenue increased by approximately 57% for the six months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017. The increase was also attributed to the acquisition of VS and Apex.

Net sales increased for the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017 due to the acquisition of VS and Apex. In an effort to continue to increase our sales in future periods, we believe we need to monitor and grow the business related to the acquisition of VS and Apex along with hiring additional sales staff to initiate a telemarketing campaign and to obtain leads from various lead sources such as lead generating telemarketing lists, email marketing campaigns and other sources. However, given our lack of working capital, we cannot assure that we will ever be able to successfully implement our current business strategy or increase our revenues in future periods.

Cost of Sales

Cost of product includes product and delivery costs relating to the sale of product revenue. Cost of services includes labor and installation for service revenue. Overall, cost of sales increased approximately 12% and 109% for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the three and six months ended June 30, 2017. The following tables provide comparative data regarding the breakdown of the cost of sales in each of these periods and the change from 2017 to 2018:

Three Months
Ended
June 30, 2018

Three Months
Ended
June 30, 2017

Edgar Filing: DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS INC - Form 10-Q

	\$	% of Total		\$	% of Total		Variano	ce
Cost of product	505,058	78	%	469,797	81	%	8	%
Cost of service	145,158	22	%	111,620	19	%	30	%
Total	650,216	100	%	581,417	100	%	12	%

	Six Months Ended June 30, 2018			Six Months Ended June 30, 2017				
	\$	% of Total		\$	% of Total		Variano	e
Cost of product	921,404	80	%	499,844	80	%	84	%
Cost of service	387,090	20	%	125,415	20	%	209	%
Total	1,308,494	100	%	625,259	100	%	109	%

During the three months ended June 30, 2018, our cost of product increased approximately 8% as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2017 which is directly related to product mix and the acquisition of VS and Apex. Our cost of services for the three months ended June 30, 2018 increased 30% as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2017 due to service requirements to ensure the related product installations are completed on time and the acquisition of VS and Apex.

During the six months ended June 30, 2018, our cost of product increased approximately 84% as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017 which is directly related to the acquisition of VS and Apex. Our cost of services for the six months ended June 30, 2018 increased 209% as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017 due to the acquisition of VS and Apex.

Total operating expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2018 were \$1,341,532, an increase of \$802,462, or approximately 149%, from total operating expenses for the comparable three months ended June 30, 2017 of \$539,070. This increase is primarily attributable to significant investments in marketing and public relations, coupled with higher compensation and related taxes and other selling, general and administrative expenses. These increases are the result of planned investments and the acquisition of VS and Apex. Total operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2018 were \$2,237,428, an increase of \$1,452,384, or approximately 185%, from total operating expenses for the comparable six months ended June 30, 2017 of \$785,044. This increase is primarily attributable to the acquisition of VS and Apex coupled with increases in compensation and related taxes, rent, depreciation expense, amortization expense, marketing and public relations, and other selling, general and administrative expenses.

Loss from Operations

We reported loss from operations of \$881,100 for the three months ended June 30, 2018, as compared to income from operations of \$111,004 for the three months ended June 30, 2017, representing an increase in loss from operations of \$992,104 or 894%. For the six months ended June 30, 2018, we reported loss from operations of \$1,234,143 as compared to a loss from operations of \$50,895 for the six months ended June 30, 2017, representing an increase in loss from operations of \$1,183,248 or 2,325%.

Other Income (Expense)

Total other income was \$25,127,130 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to total other expense of \$2,783,416 for the three months ended June 30, 2017. The increase in other income was primarily attributable to the gain on change in fair value of derivative liabilities, partially offset by increases in initial derivative expense, amortization of debt discount, and interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2017. Total other expense was \$613,326 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to total other expense of \$531,209 for the six months ended June 30, 2017. The increase in other expense was primarily attributable to increases in initial derivative expense, amortization of debt discount, and interest expense, partially offset by a gain on change in fair value of derivative liabilities for the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2017.

Net Loss

We reported net income of \$24,246,030 and a net loss of \$1,847,470 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to a net loss of \$2,672,412 and \$582,104 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017. Net loss from non-controlling interest for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 was \$1,390 and \$22,373 as compared to net income of \$14,131 and \$31,524 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2017.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is the ability of a company to generate funds to support its current and future operations, satisfy its obligations, and otherwise operate on an ongoing basis. At June 30, 2018, we had a cash balance of \$164,946 and a working capital deficit of \$12,521,909.

We reported a net increase in cash for the six months ended June 30, 2018 of \$96,509. While we currently have no material commitments for capital expenditures, at June 30, 2018 we owed approximately \$1.8 million under various notes payable. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, we raised \$1.3 million of proceeds through the issuance of convertible notes payable.

Accrued expenses were \$3,920,570 at June 30, 2018 and consist of the following:

Accrued salaries for certain employees amounting to \$1,927,739

Accrued commissions for certain employees amounting to \$6,357

Sales tax payable of \$55,872

Accrued interest of \$1,756,763

Accrued payroll liabilities and taxes of \$21,000

Other accrued expenses of \$152,839

On January 5, 2018, the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$8,947 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$13,098, OID of \$447, debt discount of \$8,053 and derivative expense of \$5,045. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$8,947 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$4,697.

On January 19, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$7,895 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$11,557, OID of \$395, debt discount of \$7,105 and derivative expense of \$4,452. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$7,895 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$3,832.

On January 24, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$52,632 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$84,591, OID of \$2,632, debt discount of \$47,368 and derivative expense of \$37,223. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On January 30, 2018, the Company issued a convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$58,000 with a one year maturity date. This note holder has the right to convert the principal balance of the debenture beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this note and ending on the later of the maturity date and the date of the default amount. The convertible promissory note has terms to convert at a 37% discount of the lowest trading price during the 10 days prior to conversion. The Company recorded \$3,000 in deferred financing associated with this note. The deferred financing is being amortized on a straight line basis over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$58,000 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of deferred financing at June 30, 2018 was \$56,542.

On February 9, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$15,789 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$23,434, OID of \$789, debt discount of \$8,434 and derivative expense of \$15,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$15,789 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$10,025.

On February 15, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$12,632 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$18,747, OID of \$632, debt discount of \$6,747 and derivative expense of \$12,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$12,632 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$8,020.

On February 26, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$26,316 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$39,056, OID of \$1,316, debt discount of \$14,056 and derivative expense of \$25,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$26,316 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$16,068.

On March 6, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$31,579 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$50,755, OID of \$1,579, debt discount of \$28,421 and derivative expense of \$22,334. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On March 9, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$31,579 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$46,868, OID of \$1,579, debt discount of \$16,868 and derivative expense of \$30,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$31,579 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$18,512.

On March 16, 2018, the Company issued a replacement convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$124,689 with a one year maturity date that was recorded under note payable on the company's balance sheet as of December 31, 2017 in the amount of \$66,667 and accrued interest of \$8,811. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$200,404 and derivative expense of \$202,404. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, the note holder converted \$84,150 of the principal balance of the convertible promissory note into 29,493,911 common shares at contractual rates of \$.00176, \$.002475, and \$.0055 per share. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On March 21, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$52,632 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a

derivative liability of \$74,001, OID of \$2,632, debt discount of \$24,000 and derivative expense of \$50,001. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$52,632 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$33,453.

On March 23, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$26,316 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$42,848, OID of \$1,316, debt discount of \$17,848 and derivative expense of \$25,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On March 31, 2018, the Company issued a replacement convertible promissory note assigning two outstanding convertible promissory notes to a third party note holder with a principal balance of \$74,754 and a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$121,717, OID of \$439, debt discount of \$54,858 and derivative expense of \$74,754. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On April 5, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$105,263 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$145,905, OID of \$5,263, debt discount of \$94,737 and derivative expense of \$51,168. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. During June 2018, this promissory note was paid in full.

On April 5, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$55,368 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$64,472, OID of \$2,368, debt discount of \$50,632 and derivative expense of \$13,841. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$55,368 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$20,035.

On April 18, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$113,250 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$131,876, OID of \$5,250, debt discount of \$108,000 and derivative expense of \$23,876. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$113,250 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$31,458.

On April 27, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$18,947 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$23,695, OID of \$947, debt discount of \$17,053 and derivative expense of \$6,642. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was

\$18,947 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018 was \$3,947.

On May 2, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$129,000 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$150,229, OID of \$6,000, debt discount of \$123,000 and derivative expense of \$27,229. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$129,000 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$28,667.

On May 16, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$113,250 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$131,904, OID of \$5,250, debt discount of \$108,000 and derivative expense of \$23,904. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$113,250 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$18,875.

On May 30, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$118,500 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$138,006, OID of \$5,500, debt discount of \$113,000 and derivative expense of \$25,006. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$118,500 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$13,167.

On June 13, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$122,273 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$142,418, OID of \$5,750, debt discount of \$116,523 and derivative expense of \$25,894. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$122,273 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$6,793.

On June 15, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$279,102 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$325,078, OID of \$13,125, debt discount of \$265,477 and derivative expense of \$59,601. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$279,102 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$15,978.

On June 27, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$118,500 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of \$138,022, OID of \$5,500, debt discount of \$113,000 and derivative expense of \$25,022. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note was \$118,500 at June 30, 2018. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of OID and debt discount at June 30, 2018, was \$0.

We reported a net loss of \$1,847,740 during the six months ended June 30, 2018. At June 30, 2018 we had a working capital deficit of \$12,521,909. We do not anticipate we will be profitable in 2018. Therefore our operations will be dependent on our ability to secure additional financing. Financing transactions may include the issuance of equity or debt securities, obtaining credit facilities, or other financing mechanisms. The trading price of our common stock and

a downturn in the U.S. equity and debt markets could make it more difficult to obtain financing through the issuance of equity or debt securities. Even if we are able to raise the funds required, it is possible that we could incur unexpected costs and expenses, fail to collect significant amounts owed to us, or experience unexpected cash requirements that would force us to seek alternative financing. Furthermore, if we issue additional equity or debt securities, stockholders may experience additional dilution or the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of existing holders of our common stock. The inability to obtain additional capital may restrict our ability to grow and may reduce our ability to continue to conduct business operations. If we are unable to obtain additional financing, we will likely be required to curtail our marketing and development plans and possibly cease our operations. Furthermore we have debt obligations, which must be satisfied. If we are successful in securing additional working capital, we intend to increase our marketing efforts to grow our revenues. Other than those disclosed above, we do not presently have any firm commitments for any additional capital and our financial condition as well as the uncertainty in the capital markets may make our ability to secure this capital difficult. There are no assurances that we will be able to continue our business, and we may be forced to cease operations in which event investors could lose their entire investment in our company. Included in our Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 is a discussion regarding Going Concern.

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2018 amounted to \$749,676 and was primarily attributable to our net loss of \$1,847,470 coupled with an increase in accounts receivable of \$253,695. The loss was partially offset by an increase in accrued expenses of \$814,180 and an increase in accounts payable of \$119,085. Net cash flows used in operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2017 amounted to \$157,074 and was primarily attributable to our net loss of \$582,104 coupled with an increase in accounts receivable of \$184,267, and a decrease in accounts payable of \$91,573, partially offset by a net increase in non-cash items of \$660,522, a decrease in other current assets of \$3,556, and an increase in accrued expenses of \$97,587.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was \$7,255 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and consisted of purchases of property and equipment. Net cash flows provided by investing activities was \$59,389 for the six months ended June 30, 2017 as a result of \$59,389 in proceeds from the acquisition of VS and Apex.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was \$853,440 for the six months ended June 30, 2018. We received proceeds from convertible notes payable of \$1,314,000. These amounts were offset by repayments of notes payables of \$172,060, repayments of convertible notes payable of \$262,500, and payments to a related party of \$26,000. Net cash flows provided by financing activities was \$267,465 for the six months ended June 30, 2017. We received proceeds from convertible notes payable of \$210,000, proceeds from notes payable of \$59,000, and proceeds for a line of credit of \$30,000. These amounts were offset by repayments of notes payables of \$29,139 and repayments on the line of credit of \$2,396.

On July 27, 2018, the Company entered into a settlement with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. ("Chase") regarding payment of the outstanding balance under that certain Promissory Note and U.S. Small Business Administration Note dated April 15, 2015 (the "Notes") in the aggregate principal amount of approximately \$1,900,000 including interest (the "Loan Amount") between Video Surveillance LLC, Apex CCTV, and Chase. According to the terms of the settlement, the Company and Chase have agreed to a full and final settlement of the Loan Amount and the related transactions thereunder in exchange for payment by the Company in the amount of \$475,000 on August 3, 2018 (the "Initial Payment") and three additional payments of \$475,000 each month thereafter (the "Additional Payment"). As of the date hereof, the Company has timely made the Initial Payment to Chase and intends to deliver each Additional Payment in full satisfaction of the Loan Amount. In the event the Company fails to timely deliver an Additional

Payment, Chase may call an event of default under the terms of the Notes and accelerate the Loan Amount, amongst other remedies available to Chase.

Contractual Obligations

We have certain fixed contractual obligations and commitments that include future estimated payments. Changes in our business needs, cancellation provisions, changing interest rates, and other factors may result in actual payments differing from the estimates. We cannot provide certainty regarding the timing and amounts of payments. We have presented below a summary of the most significant assumptions used in our determination of amounts presented in the tables, in order to assist in the review of this information within the context of our consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2018, and the effect these obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods.

	Payments Due by Period				
	Total	Less than 1 year	1-3 Years	4-5 Years	5 Years +
Contractual Obligations:					
Operating Leases	\$102,339	102,339	-	-	-
Total Contractual Obligations:	\$102,339	102,339	-	-	-

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our unaudited financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are affected by management's applications of accounting policies. Critical accounting policies for our company include revenue recognition and accounting for stock based compensation, use of estimates, accounts receivable, property and equipment, derivative liabilities and income taxes.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09 (ASC 606) and related amendments, which superseded all prior revenue recognition methods and industry-specific guidance. The core principle of ASC 606 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of control for promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In applying the revenue principles, an entity is required to identify the contract(s) with a customer, identify the performance obligations, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations and recognize revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied (i.e., either over time or point in time). ASC 606 further requires that companies disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

ASC 606 provides companies an option of two transition methods, the full retrospective method, in which case the standard would be applied to each prior reporting period presented and the cumulative effect of applying the standard would be recognized at the earliest period shown, or the modified retrospective method, in which case the cumulative effect of applying the standard would be recognized at the date of initial application. The ASU is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017.

Effective January 1, 2018 (beginning of fiscal year 2018), the Company adopted the requirements of ASC 606 using the modified retrospective method. The guidance was not applied to contracts that were complete at December 31, 2017, and the comparative information for the prior fiscal year has not been retrospectively adjusted.

The adoption of ASC 606 did not have any impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. The adoption of ASC 606 did not have a significant impact on the Company's revenue recognition policy as revenues on the substantial majority of the Company's contracts continue to be recognized over time.

In adopting ASC 606, the Company elected to use certain practical expedients permitted by the standard including electing to adopt the right-to-invoice practical expedient on certain time and material contracts where the Company recognizes revenues as it is contractually able to invoice the customer based on the control transferred to the customer.

The following policies reflect specific criteria for the various revenue streams of the Company:

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of conferencing services. The Company generally does not charge up-front fees and bills its customers based on usage. The Company has elected the practical expedient to recognized revenue "as-billed".

Revenue for video equipment sales and security surveillance equipment sales is recognized upon delivery and installation which the Company has determined is the point in time that control is transferred to the customer. Due to the nature of the Company's business it is not practicable to return products therefore the Company has determined that it is not necessary to estimate for sales returns and allowances. The Company's manufacturers provide the highest quality products available. If there is a defect in a product related to materials or workmanship the Company extends the manufacturer's warranty to its customers. To date this process has never occurred. Therefore no warranty liability is recorded.

Revenue from periodic maintenance agreements is generally recognized ratably over the respective maintenance periods provided no significant obligations remain and collectability of the related receivable is probable. Maintenance agreements are considered stand ready arrangements for which control is transferred to the customer ratably over time.

Stock Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued FASB ASC Topic 718:

Compensation – Stock Compensation ("ASC 718"). Under ASC 718, companies are required to measure the compensation costs of share-based compensation arrangements based on the grant-date fair value and recognize the costs in the financial statements over the period during which employees are required to provide services. Share-based compensation arrangements include stock options, restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights and employee share purchase plans. Companies may elect to apply this statement either prospectively, or on a modified version of retrospective application under which financial statements for prior periods are adjusted on a basis consistent with the pro forma disclosures required for those periods under ASC 718. Upon adoption of ASC 718, the Company elected to value employee stock options using the Black-Scholes option valuation method that uses assumptions that relate to the expected volatility of the Company's common stock, the expected dividend yield of our stock, the expected life of the options and the risk free interest rate. Such compensation amounts, if any, are amortized over the respective vesting periods or period of service of the option grant.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these unaudited financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported net sales and expenses during the reporting periods. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Account Receivable

We have a policy of reserving for uncollectible accounts based on our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in existing accounts receivable. We periodically review our accounts receivable to determine whether an allowance is necessary based on an analysis of past due accounts and other factors that may indicate that the realization of an account may be in doubt. Account balances deemed to be uncollectible are charged to the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. The cost of repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred; major replacements and improvements are capitalized. When assets are retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are included in income in the year of disposition. The Company examines the possibility of decreases in the value of fixed assets when events or changes in circumstances reflect the fact that their recorded value may not be recoverable. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method as prescribed by ASC Topic 740: Income Taxes ("ASC 740"). It requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns. The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items, which are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of assessable tax profit. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probably that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it is related to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and we intend to settle our current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Pursuant to accounting standards related to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, a tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is "more likely than not" that the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the "more likely than not" test, no tax benefit is recorded. The adoption had no effect on our financial statements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date, which deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09 for all entities by one year. This update is effective for public business entities for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those reporting periods, Earlier application was permitted only as of annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. ASU 2014-09 was to become effective for us beginning January 2017; however, ASU 2015-14 deferred our effective date until January 2018, which is when we plan to adopt this standard. The ASU permits two methods of adoption: retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented (full retrospective method), or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the guidance recognized at the date of initial application (the modified retrospective method). The ASU also requires expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. Additionally, qualitative and quantitative disclosures are required for customer contracts, significant judgments and changes in judgments, and assets recognized from the costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. We have completed the process of evaluating the effect of the adoption and determined that our contracts for which customers purchase both surveillance products and installation services from us may result in a change to our reported revenues as a result of the adoption. Based on our evaluation process and review of our contracts with customers, the timing and amount of revenue recognized based on ASU 2015-14 will be recognized when our performance obligations are satisfied for both product sales and installation services. This differs from previous guidance in which we recognized the sale of the products and installation services at the same time. We adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2018, using the modified retrospective approach, and will expand our consolidated financial statement disclosures in order to comply with the ASU. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements due to the short term nature of our contracts.

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-01, to clarify the definition of a business. Under this updated standard, an entity will be able to more consistently account for transactions when determining if such transactions represent acquisitions or disposals of assets or of a business. This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

The Company has reviewed all recently issued, but not yet adopted, accounting pronouncements and does not expect the future adoption of any such pronouncements to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements, except as described below.

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update, Leases (Topic 842), intended to improve financial reporting about leasing transactions. The ASU affects all companies and other organizations that lease assets such as real estate, airplanes, and manufacturing equipment. Under the new guidance, a lessee will be required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than 12 months. Consistent with current Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike current GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the statement of assets, liabilities, and members' equity (deficit)—the new ASU will require both types of leases to be recognized on the statement of assets, liabilities, and members' equity (deficit). The ASU on leases will take effect for all public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018.

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-04, to simplify the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Under this updated standard, an entity should recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit's fair value, but the loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. An entity also should consider income tax effects from any tax-deductible goodwill on the carrying amount of the reporting unit when measuring the goodwill impairment loss, if any. This guidance is effective prospectively and is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted.

In June 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2018-07, to reduce cost and complexity and to improve financial reporting for share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods or services from nonemployees. Under this update standard, an entity should apply the requirements to nonemployee awards except for specific guidance on inputs to an option pricing model and the attribution of cost. Furthermore, this update standard applies to all share-based payment transactions in which a grantor acquires goods or services to be used or consumed in a grantor's own operations by issuing share-based payment awards. This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 with early adoption permitted.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any other financial guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the payment obligations of any third parties. We have not entered into any derivative contracts that are indexed to our shares and classified as stockholder's equity or that are not reflected in our consolidated financial statements. Furthermore, we do not have any retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to such entity.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We do not hold any derivative instruments and do not engage in any hedging activities.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

In connection with the preparation of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018, our Principal Executive Officer ("PEO") and Principal Financial Officer ("PFO") evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our PEO and PFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report were effective such that the information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure. A controls system cannot provide absolute assurance, however, that the objectives of the controls system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

We are currently not involved in any litigation that we believe could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the executive officers of our company or any of our subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting our company, our common stock, any of our subsidiaries or of our companies or our subsidiaries officers or directors in their capacities as such, in which an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

We believe there are no changes that constitute material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on April 17, 2018.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Other than as disclosed below, there were no unregistered sales of the Company's equity securities during the quarter ended June 30, 2018 that were not previously disclosed in a current report on Form 8-K, or quarterly report on Form 10-Q.

On April 5, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$105,263 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On April 5, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$55,368 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On April 18, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$113,250 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On April 27, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$18,947 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On May 2, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$129,000 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On May 16, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$113,250 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On May 30, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$118,500 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On June 13, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$122,273 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On June 15, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$279,102 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

On June 27, 2018, the Company issued a 5% OID convertible promissory note with a principal balance of \$118,500 with a nine month maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion.

The preceding securities were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), but qualified for exemption under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. The securities were exempt from registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act because the issuance of such securities by the Company did not involve a "public offering," as defined in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act, due to the insubstantial number of persons involved in the transaction, size of the offering, and manner of the offering and number of securities offered. The Company did

not undertake an offering in which it sold a high number of securities to a high number of investors. In addition, the Investor had the necessary investment intent as required by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act since they agreed to, and received, the securities bearing a legend stating that such securities are restricted pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act. This restriction ensures that these securities would not be immediately redistributed into the market and therefore not be part of a "public offering." Based on an analysis of the above factors, the Company has met the requirements to qualify for exemption under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
There has been no default in the payment of principal, interest, sinking or purchase fund installment, or any other material default, with respect to any indebtedness of the Company.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
Item 5. Other Information.
None.
36

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit No.	Description
31.1	<u>Certification of Principal Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of 2002</u>
31.2	Certification of Principal Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of 2002
32.1	Certification of Principal Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2	Certification of Principal Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC.

Date: August 16, 2018 By:/s/Roger Ralston

Roger Ralston

Chief Executive Officer Principal Executive Officer

Date: August 16, 2018 By:/s/ Michele Ralston

Michele Ralston Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial Officer Principal Accounting Officer